
South Haven City Hall is barrier free and the City of South Haven will provide the necessary 
reasonable auxiliary aids and services for persons with disabilities, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting to 
individuals with disabilities at the meeting upon seven (7) days notice to the South Haven City 
Hall.    
 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
Monday, October 26, 2015 
7:00 p.m., City Council Chambers 
 
 

                            City of South Haven 
 
 

 
1. Call to Order by Lewis at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call 

 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 
4. Approval of Minutes – September 28, 2015 
 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
6. New Business – Public Hearings 
 

a) Phillip and Kimberly Roehm of South Haven are requesting the following 
variances for a new home planned at 77 Northshore Drive #19: Front setback of 
23 feet where 25 feet is required; Side setbacks are 10 feet and 8 feet where 12 
feet on both sides is required; Lot coverage is 39.5% where 30% maximum is 
required. The parcel number for this property is 80-53- 701-011-01. 

 
b) Richard Braunz, owner of 820 Green Street, is requesting an east side setback 

variance of 1.7 feet. The proposed setback will be 10.3 feet where 12 feet is 
required. The property is currently vacant but the applicant is planning to move a 
house onto the site. The parcel number for this property is 80-53-470-039-00. 

 
c) Woodham’s Ford, 1111 La Grange Street, is requesting a side yard setback and 

front and side landscaping variances as part of a large renovation project. The 
parcel number for this property is 80-53-615-025-00 and 80-53-615-009-00. 
 
 
 
 



d)  Steve and Virginia Goble of Northville, MI are requesting a rear yard variance to  
construct a house at 429 Van Buren Street. The proposed setback is 12.05 feet 
where 25 feet is required. The parcel number for this property is 80-53-006-015-
00. 

 
7. Commissioner Comments 
 
8.   Adjourn       
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 
 

 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 2 of 54



Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 
Monday, September 28, 2015 
7:00 p.m., City Council Chambers 
 
 

                            City of South Haven 
 
 

 
1. Call to Order by Lewis at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call 

 
Present:  Miller, Paull, Stegeman, Wheeler, Lewis 
Absent:   Boyd, Bugge   

 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion by Paull, second by Stegeman to approve the September 28, 2015 agenda as 
presented. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
4. Approval of Minutes – August 24, 2015 
 

Motion by Miller, second by Wheeler to approve the August 24, 2015 regular meeting 
minutes as written. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 

There were none. 
 
6. Old Business – Phillip Freeman of South Haven, MI is returning to the ZBA in his attempt to 

obtain a variance from Zoning Ordinance Section 2406 (Overlay Zone Landscaping) for his 
property at 807 Lagrange Street. Mr. Freeman was asked by the ZBA to present options for 
landscaping. 

Motion by Paull, second by Stegeman to remove the item from the table.  

All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 3 of 54



Anderson noted that at the last meeting, Mr. Freeman was asked to come back with some 
ideas for landscaping. It was generally agreed at that meeting that the Zoning Board of 
Appeals was not going to require the removal of any concrete but was just looking for some 
landscaping to break up the view. Mr. Freeman came back with a plan, showing large potted 
plants, a tree and some flowering plants. Anderson thinks this is fine and wants to be sure 
there is something in the pots that will be there year around. Anderson noted, “This is 
admirable considering what he had to work with.”  

Anderson recommended that part of an approval would be that the fence be painted, 
straightened and existing landscaping cleaned up. Wheeler asked whether there were any 
specifics about the fence in the proposed plan to which Anderson responded that there were 
not, but the board can make the fence details part of the motion. 

Philip Freeman, 18400 72nd Street, South Haven. Noted that the proposal he made is based 
on what Anderson suggested; that he went out and looked at the Vineyard and Joe’s Bar & 
Grill and put together something comparable. Freeman indicated that there are six (6) pots 
about twenty inches (20”) in diameter and about twenty inches (20”) high and that he can 
plant something that will stay green all year round. Indicating the proposed tree at the corner 
of Willow and LaGrange, Freeman noted that he needs to verify that it is not in city property.  

Lewis asked about along Willow, noting that the plan does not show anything along Willow. 
Freeman stated that he looked at the Vineyard and they do not have anything along the line 
to the north so he concentrated on LaGrange. Freeman noted that the good side of the 
fence is to the east.  

Paull pointed out that the plan as presented has no barrier between Willow, a residential 
street, and the business. Wheeler noted there is a business across the street and asked 
whether they have plantings.  

Paull noted that the philosophy of the overlay zone is to try to make things more attractive 
and soften the line between residential and business districts. While Paull stated that while 
he does not expect the paving to be torn up, there needs to be at least a couple of pots 
along Willow. Paull reiterated that the overlay zone was built to make the businesses more 
attractive in the entrance of the city and to residential areas. His suggestion is to add some 
pots along the line of Willow.  

Freeman responded, “That’s doable; not a problem.” 

Chuck Bodfish, business owner leasing subject property: “We were so busy the other day 
we had cars every which way, had cars everywhere, almost on the street. We would have a 
problem if we had that many cars very often. By this landscaping requirement, we are 
cutting the parking lot down rather badly.”  

Paull asked, “Isn’t it an in and out business?” Bodfish responded that the dealerships are 
sending lot cars which are in addition to the regular customers. Bodfish also noted, “We 
have to figure out how to plow around the pots, too. Those pots will be so close to the road it 

 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 4 of 54



will be hard to plow; they’ll be buried in snow. It’s hard to mow that grass; it’s so close to the 
road.”  

Lewis pointed out that the board is requiring a lot less than the actual overlay zone.  

Miller asked if it would be helpful to cluster some of the pots and Bodfish agreed that 
perhaps along Willow that would work. Lewis suggested grouping pots around the light 
poles which Miller said might solve the issue with the parking. Lewis suggested along the 
west curb cut to break up the visual coming down Willow.  

Philip Freeman. “Along LaGrange where the light poles are, which are not currently being 
used, would hanging baskets on the light poles work?”  Anderson said that would be counter 
to city code to hang, tack or place anything on the city poles. 

Motion by Miller, second by Stegeman to close the public hearing. 

All in favor. Motion carried. 

Miller noted that it appears to him that Mr. Freeman’s application, as presented, meets his 
obligation in terms of the number of trees/pots. Lewis said the letter of the law is a twenty 
foot (20’) green space so his obligation is what we say it is. Miller said at the last meeting it 
was suggested that ten [tree] units would satisfy the board.  

Stegeman agreed and said he is ready to make a motion to approve. Lewis said he believes 
that putting them along the light poles on LaGrange looks very good. Stegeman pointed out 
that the city put those bump outs along the city streets which are always getting hit by plows 
and questioned whether that was good planning for a city in Michigan. Miller suggested that 
the board accept the application as presented with the agreement that the applicant can 
handle Willow Street by clustering some pots. 

Motion by Miller, second by Stegeman to approve the proposed landscaping with the 
addition of pots on Willow as discussed.  

Wheeler asked about the fence. Freeman showed a picture and suggested painting the 
fence as shown. After discussion, Lewis suggested adding to the motion that the fence be 
maintained with a paint or stain coat to keep it in good shape.  

Sherry Bodfish indicated that the fence is not on their property, and wondered if they need to 
get permission of the property owner to maintain it. Freeman also stated that the fence is not 
on the subject property. Lewis suggested the requirement for the fence be removed. Paull 
reiterated that what is in the pots should be year-round green.  

Lewis noted that it needs to be added that the extenuating circumstances of the size of the 
easements and the amount of paving makes it a hardship to comply with the requirements 
of the overlay zone. Paull added that if any substantial changes are made to the property 
the landscaping requirements in the overlay zone would start over at square one. 
Discussion ensued regarding substantial changes including such things as additions to the 
building, removal of paving or a new building.  

 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 5 of 54



In response to the discussion, Wheeler made a motion to amend Miller’s motion giving 
consideration to the hardships specific to the property, with the addition of two potted plants 
on the Willow Street side and the stipulation that some of the plants in each pot be year-
round plants and properly maintained. Stegeman seconded the motion. 

A roll call vote was taken to approve the motion as amended: 

Yes:  Miller, Paull, Stegeman, Wheeler, Lewis 
Nays:  None 
 
Motion carried. 

7. Commissioner Comments 
 

Paull: We are struggling with the overlay zone. It seems to be the most frequent request we 
are getting. Let’s be real careful as we consider these that some aspects of that zoning 
district are honored because it will make a difference to the look of the city.  
 
Wheeler said we want to be sure to have each applicant “stretch” a little.  
 
Anderson: Next month we have a really big agenda. Woodhams’ Ford is coming in and they 
need two or three variances; we have two new houses going in both of which need 
variances. One of those is in the area over by Oak Court where there are fifty foot (50’) lots 
with twenty-five foot (25’) side setbacks. We may have a couple more applications on the 
way. Before that meeting we possibly are going to have an alternate appointed. If someone 
cannot make it to the meeting, the alternate will fill in as a voting member. The alternate will 
get the agenda, will attend the meetings and if needed will fill in.  
 
Lewis noted that we used to have two alternates to which Anderson responded that there 
should be two alternates on this board and two on the Planning Commission. Anderson also 
asked board members to let her know if they think of someone who might be interested.  
 

8. Adjourn     
 

Motion by Miller, second by Stegeman to adjourn at 7:32 p.m. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
   

 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Marsha Ransom  
Recording Secretary 

 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 6 of 54



Zoning Board of Appeals Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item #6a 
Setback Variances 

  77 Northshore Drive #19 
 

City of South Haven 
 
 

Background Information:  The applicant is asking for variances in order to build a single family 
residence on the property. This use is permitted in the RM-1 zone. The subject parcel is narrow 
and undersized for the RM-1 zoning district. The required setbacks would allow for a building 
envelope of 26’ x 70’. If the lot were the size required for the RM-1 zone, the building envelope 
would be 42’ x 82’. 

 
Three (3) variances are sought: Two feet on the front side; 2’ and 4’ on the sides and a 9½% lot 
coverage variance. 
 
The applicant argues that the depth and narrowness of the lot require a variance to construct a 
residence. The property size is not unlike that found in the R1-A zoning district. The difference 
here is that the R1-A zone allows side setback which are considerably smaller and a front 
setback of only 15 feet. The ZBA members will need to consider whether the requirements of 
the RM-1 district are too restrictive for this property. 
 
Recommendation: The ZBA members will need to consider whether the requirements of the 
RM-1 district are too restrictive for this property given the space available. 
 
Support Material: 
 
Application 
Graphic of required setbacks 
Staff Findings of Fact 
 
 
 

 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 7 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 8 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 9 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 10 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 11 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 12 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 13 of 54



STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT 
CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 
DATE:  October 26, 2015 
ADDRESS:  77 Northshore #19 
ZONING DISTRICT:  RM-1 Multi family Residential 
LOT DIMENSIONS:  120 feet deep, 50 feet wide (RM-1 zone requires 66 feet of 
frontage) 
LOT AREA:  5000 sq. ft. (RM-1 zone requires 8712 sq. ft. minimum) 
LOT COVERAGE:  Allowed – 30%, proposed – 39.5% (dripline measurement) 
REQUIRED SETBACKS:  Front - 25 feet; Rear – 25 feet; Sides – 12 feet 
PROPOSED SETBACKS:  Front – 23 feet on Northshore;  

Side (north) – 8’; Side (south) – 10’ 
Rear – 25’ 

VARIANCE REQUEST:  The applicant is asking for variances in order to build a 
single family residence on the property. This use is 
permitted in the RM-1 zone. The subject parcel is narrow 
and undersized for the RM-1 zoning district. The required 
setbacks would allow for a building envelope of 26’ x 70’. If 
the lot were the size required for the RM-1 zone, the 
building envelope would be 42’ x 82’. 

 
Three (3) variances are sought: Two feet on the front side; 
2’ and 4’ on the sides and a 9½% lot coverage variance. 

 
DIMENSIONAL VARIANCE STANDARDS 
City of South Haven Zoning Ordinance Section 2205: 
 
1. Such variance will not be detrimental to adjacent property and the surrounding 
neighborhood. 
This property is part of Water’s Edge Condominium. Willow Court is part of that 
property and is not considered a public street according to the city engineer. 
Since this is largely a residential neighborhood, residential construction on this 
lot will not be detrimental to the surrounding neighborhood.  
 
2. Such variance will not impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance. 
The ordinance provides for the variance process when relief is needed due to lot 
size or configuration. This is a case where lot size is smaller than required in the 
RM-1 zone and that is the applicant’s cause for the variance application. This is 
the intent of the ordinance. 
 
3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property in 
question or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to other 
properties in the same zoning district. Such circumstances shall create a practical 
difficulty because of unique circumstances or physical conditions such as narrowness, 
shallowness, shape or topography of the property involved, or to the intended use of the 
property. See Section 2204(2). 
The applicant argues that the depth and narrowness of the lot require a variance 
to construct a residence. The property size is not unlike that found in the R1-A 
zoning district. The difference here is that the R1-A zone allows side setback 

 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 14 of 54



which are considerably smaller and a front setback of only 15 feet. The ZBA 
members will need to consider whether the requirements of the RM-1 district are 
too restrictive for this property. 
 
4. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial 
property right similar to that possessed by other properties in the same zoning district 
and in the vicinity. The possibility of increased financial return shall not of itself be 
deemed sufficient to warrant a variance. 
Other properties in the zoning district (except those on Oak Court) have large 
enough lots to comply with the setback requirements. To deny this variance 
request would not deny all use of the property but it would require a smaller 
structure than desired.  
 
5. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of 
said property, for which the variance is sought, is not of so general or recurrent a nature 
as to make reasonably practicable the formulation of a general regulation for such 
conditions or situation. 
As stated, most lots in the RM-1 zone are large enough to comply with the zoning 
requirements. The five (5) lots on Oak Court and the subject lot are notable 
exceptions. This is not a problem general to the zoning district or this area in the 
city overall. 
 
6. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of 
said property, for which the variance is sought, shall not be the result of actions of the 
property owner. In other words, the problem shall not be self-created. 
This is an old lot of record and the applicant had little to do with the limited size. 
This is not a self-created problem except for the applicant’s desire for a larger 
home than is allowed.  
 
7. That strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or density would 
unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose, or 
would render conformity unnecessarily burdensome. 
To strictly comply with the ordinance requirements would not result in the lot 
being unusable. 
 
8. That the variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to overcome the 
inequality inherent in the particular property or mitigate the hardship. 
This is a consideration for the ZBA. It shall be determined that the lot size and 
setback requirements are placing an unnecessary burden on the owner’s use of 
the lot. 
 
9. That the variance will relate only to property under the control of the applicant. 
This variance only applies to property at 77 North Shore which is owned by the 
Roehm’s. 

 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 15 of 54



Zoning Board of Appeals Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item #6b 
Side Setback Variance 

 820 Green Street 
 

City of South Haven 
 
 

Background Information:  Richard Braunz is proposing to move an existing house across 
Green Street for placement on his property at 820 Green Street. Mr. Braunz owns a double lot 
which will need to be split for this relocation. He already has a house on one half of the lot. The 
applicant is asking for a variance of 1.7 feet on the east side of the property to allow the 
relocation. He owns and lives in the house on that side. The house proposed for moving is 
owned by the city and was planned for demolition, not due to building condition but because of 
drainage issues on the property.  
 
Recommendation: The ZBA members need to determine if the applicant has made a 
compelling argument for the variance and whether or not the situation is self-imposed. 
 
Support Material: 
 
Application 
Graphic of required setbacks 
Staff Findings of Fact 
 
 
 

 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 16 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 17 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 18 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 19 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 20 of 54



STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT 
CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 
DATE: October 26, 2015 
ADDRESS: 820 Green Street 
ZONING DISTRICT: R1-A Single Family 
LOT DIMENSIONS: 66’x132’ 
LOT AREA: .2 acres (8712 sq. feet) 
LOT COVERAGE: 27% 
REQUIRED SETBACKS: Front – 25’; Rear – 25’; Sides 8’ and 12’ 
EXISTING SETBACKS: vacant 
PROPOSED SETBACKS: Front – 25’; Rear – 25’; Sides 8’ and 10.3’ 
VARIANCE REQUEST: Richard Braunz is proposing to move an existing house across 
Green Street for placement on his property at 820 Green Street. Mr. Braunz owns the 
double lot which will need to be split for this relocation. The applicant is asking for a 
variance of 1.7 feet on the east side of the property. He owns and lives in the house on 
that side. The house proposed for moving is owned by the city and was planned for 
demolition, not due to building condition but because of drainage issues on the property. 
 
DIMENSIONAL VARIANCE STANDARDS 
City of South Haven Zoning Ordinance Section 2205: 
 
1. Such variance will not be detrimental to adjacent property and the surrounding 
neighborhood. 
This is a residential neighborhood and will likely remain so. If the variance is 
approved it would not change the character of the neighborhood as it exists. Staff 
does not find undue detriment to the neighborhood from the 1.7 foot variance. 
 
2. Such variance will not impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance. 
It is the intent of the R1-A zoning district to provide area for single family homes 
on lots generally larger is size than those lots found in the R1-A zone. The subject 
parcel is at present vacant and the house proposed for demolition. Granting the 
variance will make use of both an existing structure and a vacant parcel. It will not 
impair the purpose of the ordinance. 
 
3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property in 
question or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to other 
properties in the same zoning district. Such circumstances shall create a practical 
difficulty because of unique circumstances or physical conditions such as narrowness, 
shallowness, shape or topography of the property involved, or to the intended use of the 
property. See Section 2204(2). 
There does not appear to be any inherent problem with the property. It is of typical 
size and configuration required in the R1-B zone. The only problem is that the 
house proposed for relocation is larger than allowed. 
  
4. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial 
property right similar to that possessed by other properties in the same zoning district 
and in the vicinity. The possibility of increased financial return shall not of itself be 
deemed sufficient to warrant a variance. 

 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 21 of 54



The primary “enjoyment” in this zoning district involves the owning of single 
family homes. If the variance is not approved someone may still build a residence 
on the property without needing a variance. Financial return is an issue only in 
that the applicant will likely sell or rent the house once completed.  
 
5. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of 
said property, for which the variance is sought, is not of so general or recurrent a nature 
as to make reasonably practicable the formulation of a general regulation for such 
conditions or situation. 
This is an unusual situation. Staff does not recommend amending the setback 
requirements of the zoning ordinance to accommodate this situation.   
 
6. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of 
said property, for which the variance is sought, shall not be the result of actions of the 
property owner. In other words, the problem shall not be self-created. 
The problem is not self-created except for the fact that the applicant desires to 
move an existing house onto property he already owns and the house was 
subsequently realized to be too wide for the lot. 
 
7. That strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or density would 
unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose, or 
would render conformity unnecessarily burdensome. 
Strict compliance would still allow a house to be constructed as witnessed by 
many lots and homes in the R1-B zone. 
 
8. That the variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to overcome the 
inequality inherent in the particular property or mitigate the hardship. 
Since there is no inherent problem with the property, there is no response to this 
standard.    
 
9. That the variance will relate only to property under the control of the applicant.  
The variance request only involves the property owned by the applicant. 
 

 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 22 of 54



Zoning Board of Appeals Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item #6c 
Side Setback and Landscaping Variances 

 1111 LaGrange Street 
 

City of South Haven 
 
 

Background Information:  Woodham’s Ford, 1111 La Grange Street, is requesting a side yard 
setback and landscaping variances as part of a large renovation project. The parcel number for 
this property is 80-53-615-025-00 and 80-53-615-009-00. 
 
The side yard setback involves a wall which is required for the corporate signage. It is not a wall 
in the traditional sense as it is not a structural wall but an architectural appurtenance to allow a 
corporate mandated sign. 
 
The landscaping variances involve the property abutting LaGrange Street. The overlay 
ordinance requires a 25 foot greenbelt and the applicant is showing no greenbelt in the southern 
part of the road front (except along the building) and in the north section a greenbelt between 17 
and 25 feet.   
 
Recommendation: The ZBA members need to determine if the corporate requirements and 
existing structures are enough of a constraint on the property to grant a variance. 
 
Support Material: 
 
Application 
Concept drawings 
Staff Findings of Fact 
 
 
 

 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 23 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 24 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 25 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 26 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 27 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 28 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 29 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 30 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 31 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 32 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 33 of 54



STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT 
CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 
DATE:  October 26, 2015 
ADDRESS:  1111 La Grange 
ZONING DISTRICT:  B-2 General Commercial w/Overlay Zoning 
LOT DIMENSIONS:  466’ x 224’ (area of construction) 
LOT AREA:  2.3 acres 
LOT COVERAGE:  N/A in the B-2 zone  
 
PROPOSED SETBACK: La Grange -33 feet; Aylworth – 11’ 7”; Side – 222’ 6”; Rear - 72 
feet. 
 
VARIANCE REQUEST: Woodham’s Ford, 1111 La Grange Street, is requesting a side 
yard setback and front and side landscaping variances as part of a large renovation 
project. The parcel number for this property is 80-53-615-025-00 and 80-53-615-009-00. 
 
The side yard setback involves a wall which is required for the corporate signage. It is 
not a wall in the traditional sense as it is not a structural wall but an architectural 
appurtenance to allow a corporate mandated sign. 
 
The landscaping variances involve the property abutting LaGrange Street. The overlay 
ordinance requires a 25 foot greenbelt and the applicant is showing no greenbelt in the 
southern part of the road front (except along the building) and in the north section a 
greenbelt between 17 and 25 feet.   
  
 DIMENSIONAL VARIANCE STANDARDS 
City of South Haven Zoning Ordinance Section 2205: 
 
1. Such variance will not be detrimental to adjacent property and the surrounding 
neighborhood.  
This is a commercially zoned and planned area. The business has been located at 
this address for many years. The proposed improvements and renovations will 
improve the overall appearance of the property. The development will not be 
detrimental to the surrounding neighborhood. 
 
2. Such variance will not impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance. 
This property is in the B-2 General Business Zone but is also included in the 
Corridor Overlay Zone. The purpose of the overlay zone is “to enhance the quality 
and compatibility of development, to establish consistent design guidelines, to 
encourage the most appropriate use of lands, to promote the safe and efficient 
movement of traffic and preserve property values along the M-43/I-196 Business 
Loop through the City”.  As stated above, it is the intention of the city to, over 
time, to ameliorate certain conditions along the main thoroughfares leading into 
the city. The overlay zone calls for consistency in signs, more landscaping, 
improved exterior finishes and less parking. Setback requirements were often 
increased to allow more room for landscaping in the parking areas. The applicant 
has complied with most of the requirements but is asking relief for landscaping 
and side setback. Given the amount of landscaping proposed it appears the 

 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 34 of 54



applicant understands and tried to follow the ordinance intent to the extent 
possible.  
 
3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property in 
question or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to other 
properties in the same zoning district. Such circumstances shall create a practical 
difficulty because of unique circumstances or physical conditions such as narrowness, 
shallowness, shape or topography of the property involved, or to the intended use of the 
property. See Section 2204(2).  
The applicant states in the narrative that the wall extension is a requirement of 
Ford Motor Corporation. Staff believes this to be true and also notes that the wall 
is freestanding and bot a building wall in the traditional sense. The landscaping 
may be justified to a large degree by the applicant’s desire to renovate instead of 
demolish and rebuild. The applicant has added several large shade trees and 
ornamental trees to the front of the property and significant plantings along the 
building sides on LaGrange and Aylworth Streets.  While this may not be the full 
amount of landscaping required, it is significant. 
  
4. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial 
property right similar to that possessed by other properties in the same zoning district 
and in the vicinity. The possibility of increased financial return shall not of itself be 
deemed sufficient to warrant a variance.  
The right to develop and improve a property are rights of any property owner. This 
owner has operated in this location for many years and has the right to improve 
the property and keep the business and structures fresh and viable.  Since this is 
a corporate affiliate, the Ford Motor Company also has certain requirements.  
There does not appears to be a financial motive other than the desire to maintain 
the business in a competitive environment. 
 
5. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of 
said property, for which the variance is sought, is not of so general or recurrent a nature 
as to make reasonably practicable the formulation of a general regulation for such 
conditions or situation. 
This is an unusual situation. Staff does not recommend amending the zoning 
ordinance to accommodate this situation.   
  
6. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of 
said property, for which the variance is sought, shall not be the result of actions of the 
property owner. In other words, the problem shall not be self-created.  
The problem is self-created only because the applicant is choosing to renovate 
rather than demolish and rebuild the property he already owns. Many of the 
improvements are corporate standards and not necessarily the owner’s demands. 
 
7. That strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or density would 
unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose, or 
would render conformity unnecessarily burdensome.  
Without the requested variance, the applicant would have difficulty meeting some 
of the corporate standards which could be unnecessarily burdensome.  
 
 8. That the variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to overcome the 
inequality inherent in the particular property or mitigate the hardship.  

 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 35 of 54



The applicant has moved the building back from the main street and has 
increased the amount of landscaping on the site. Staff finds the variance 
requested to be the minimum. 
 
9. That the variance will relate only to property under the control of the applicant. 
The variance request only involves the property owned by the applicant. 

 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 36 of 54



Zoning Board of Appeals Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item #6d 
Rear Yard Setback Variance 

 514 Center Street 
 

City of South Haven 
 
 

Background Information:  Steve and Virginia Goble are requesting a rear setback 
variance to allow 12.08 feet where 25 feet is required. The lot is encumbered with 2 
diagonal easements which considerably reduce the usable lot area. The variance would 
allow a second garage stall on the property. 
 
Graphics are provided with the request as well as a letter from the city engineer 
explaining the easements. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
This is a property with serious constraints due to the easements which existed before the 
applicant purchased the property. There are viable reasons for granting this variance.   
 
Support Material: 
 
Application 
Setback Plan 
Setback graphic 
Staff Findings of Fact 
 
 
 

 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 37 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 38 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 39 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 40 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 41 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 42 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 43 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 44 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 45 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 46 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 47 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 48 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 49 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 50 of 54



 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 51 of 54



100 ft

Lot: 7,500 SQ FT
Buildable: 3,600 SQ FT

Buildable Less Easements: 1,713 SQ FT
30% Lot Coverage: 3,000 SQ FT

12 ft

25 ft
15 ft

75 ft

3 ft

32 ft

24 ft
60 ft

63
 ft64

 ft

2 ft

60 ft

514 Center St   80-53-006-015-00

 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 52 of 54



STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT 
CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 
DATE: October 26, 2015 
ADDRESS: 429 Van Buren 
ZONING DISTRICT: R1-A 
LOT DIMENSIONS: 75’ x 100’ 
LOT AREA: .17 acres (7500 sq. feet) 
LOT COVERAGE: 40% maximum 
REQUIRED SETBACKS: Front – 15’; Rear – 25’; Sides – 15’ total (3’ minimum) 
EXISTING SETBACKS: Vacant 
PROPOSED SETBACKS: Front – 15’; Rear – 12’; Sides – 10’ and 5’ 
VARIANCE REQUEST: Steve and Virginia Goble are requesting a rear setback 
variance to allow 12.08 feet where 25 feet is required. The lot is encumbered with 2 
diagonal easements which considerably reduce the usable lot area. The variance would 
allow two garage stalls on the property. 
 
DIMENSIONAL VARIANCE STANDARDS 
City of South Haven Zoning Ordinance Section 2205: 
 
1. Such variance will not be detrimental to adjacent property and the surrounding 
neighborhood. 
This is a residential neighborhood and the applicants are seeking to construct a 
single family home on a difficult lot. Staff does not find undue detriment to the 
neighborhood. 
 
2. Such variance will not impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance. 
The ordinance provides for zoning relief in cases where there exists a barrier to a 
legal use due to an inherent problem with the property.  The applicants have 
demonstrated such a condition. This request in consistent with the intent of the 
ordinance. 
 
3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property in 
question or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to other 
properties in the same zoning district. Such circumstances shall create a practical 
difficulty because of unique circumstances or physical conditions such as narrowness, 
shallowness, shape or topography of the property involved, or to the intended use of the 
property. See Section 2204(2). 
This property has significant issues that do create a hardship on compliance. The 
lot size is 7500 square feet which is 2500 square feet over the ordinance minimum 
for the zone. Unfortunately, the lot has 2 large easements crossing on the 
diagonal. While the lot may be 7500 square feet, only 1713 square feet are 
available for building. The applicants have sited the house within the buildable 
area but a second, attached garage is encroaching into the setback area slightly 
less than 13 feet. The ZBA needs to determine if the easements as they are 
situated are adequate hardship to grant the variance for the second garage. 
  
4. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial 
property right similar to that possessed by other properties in the same zoning district 

 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 53 of 54



and in the vicinity. The possibility of increased financial return shall not of itself be 
deemed sufficient to warrant a variance. 
Financial return is likely not at issue in this case. This is a lot with encumbrances 
but there is still room for a modest size home.  The applicant is using the available 
space well but would like a second garage stall. Staff believes that the property 
owner would not be deprived of a property right by not granting the variance but it 
may be the case that the easements do create a hardship that, if not present, 
would allow the addition of the second garage.  
 
5. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of 
said property, for which the variance is sought, is not of so general or recurrent a nature 
as to make reasonably practicable the formulation of a general regulation for such 
conditions or situation. 
This is an unusual situation. Staff does not recommend amending the zoning 
ordinance to accommodate this situation.   
 
6. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of 
said property, for which the variance is sought, shall not be the result of actions of the 
property owner. In other words, the problem shall not be self-created. 
The problem is not self-created except in terms that the applicant would like extra 
garage space. 
 
7. That strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or density would 
unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose, or 
would render conformity unnecessarily burdensome. 
Whether the 2 easements unreasonably prevent the owner from full residential 
use that is unnecessarily burdensome is a decision for the ZBA. 
 
8. That the variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to overcome the 
inequality inherent in the particular property or mitigate the hardship. 
Two parking spaces are required for each residential unit. While this does not 
necessarily mean garage space, the applicant would like to store 2 cars in a 
garage. Whether this exceeds the minimum is a decision for the ZBA. 
    
9. That the variance will relate only to property under the control of the applicant.  
The variance request only involves the property owned by the applicant. 
 

 
 
 

October 26, 2015 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Page 54 of 54


	10-26-2015 ZBA Agenda pg
	Monday, October 26, 2015

	09-28-2015 ZBA Minutes draft
	Monday, September 28, 2015

	#6a. Roehm - 77 North Shore Drive
	#6  Staff Report
	Agenda Item #6a

	Complete application
	Setback graphic
	STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT

	#6b. Braunz - 820 Green Street
	Staff report
	Agenda Item #6b

	Complete application
	STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT Braunz

	#6c. Woodhams - 1111 La Grange Street
	Staff report
	Agenda Item #6c

	Complete application
	Woodhams Ford Concept Drawings 10-06-2015
	STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT

	#6d. Goble - 429 Van Buren Street
	Staff report
	Agenda Item #6d

	Complete application
	Setback plan
	Setback graphic
	STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT Goble




